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A situation report is not an audit.  It an effective tool to inform citizens and management of 

issues in order to foster forward progress. It expresses no opinion nor draws conclusions. 

Instead the report gathers information in order to identify issues relevant to the questions 

presented. Ultimately, it is the responsibility of the entity’s stakeholders to address the issues. A 

situation report is a tool to improve effectiveness and efficiency. Unlike an audit, we do not 

validate the information provided by individuals or organizations provided for this report. If we 

improve government performance we will improve the lives of Vermonters. 

– State Auditor Thomas M. Salmon, CPA, CFE 

 

 

Our office decided to review three very significant contracts where there have been questions 

about the selection process and the performance of the contractor. The contract processes we 

reviewed were: 

• The Voice Radio Interoperability Solution (VCOMM) 

• The Medicaid Enterprise Solution (MES) RFP process for the Medicaid Management 

Information System 

• The DMV Driver and Registration information and Verification Enterprise System 

 

Contract #1: Voice Radio Interoperability Solution 
 

On March 16, 2008, State Auditor Tom Salmon released a report of a review of the contract 

award process for the Vermont Radio Interoperability Solution. This review was initiated by a 

request from a member of the Vermont House of Representatives and others to investigate the 

fairness of the vendor selection process for this project. 

That report follows. 

 

After this review, during which we received excellent cooperation from both VCOMM and the 

Department of Public Safety, the project was put on hold, with the likelihood that it would be 

revised and rebid. 

 

In May 2009, an RFP for a revised Voice Radio Interoperability Solution was put out for bids. 

Two firms – Motorola and Harris – submitted bids ranging from $8 million to $11.6 million. The 

selected contractor was Harris Corporation of Lynchburg, VA. The RFP, bid responses, and the 

Harris contract follow. 



















The Request for Proposals for a Voice Radio Interoperability Solution (May 2009) 

may be viewed by clicking here. 

 

The State of Vermont Standard Contract for Services may be accessed  

by clicking here. 

 

 

http://auditor.vermont.gov/sites/auditor/files/3%20Voice%20Radio%20Interoperability%20Solution%20RFP%20Final%20-%2005.19.09%20-%20Updated.pdf
http://auditor.vermont.gov/sites/auditor/files/4%20StateOfVT_Harris%20Contract_FINAL08212010.pdf














Agency of Human Services’ (AHS) Response to State Auditor’s questions 

regarding Medicaid Enterprise Solution (MES) (Medicaid Management Information 

System (MMIS)) Request for Proposals (RFP) Cancellation 
 

1. What was the evaluation and scoring criteria for the Vermont Medicaid Enterprise Solution (MES) 

procurement? 

The Department of Vermont Health Access (DVHA) after a competitive bid process engaged with 

Qualis Health (aka Outlook Associates) in early 2010 as the Technical Assistance Consultant to assist 

the Agency with creating a RFP for our MMIS procurement efforts. This firm has a good deal 

experience in such efforts and provided deliverables, recommendations, and guidance in the 

procurement along Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) requirements. 

 

The MES evaluation was completed by a core evaluation team made up of business leaders and 

program managers. This team was aligned to assess the proposals in three categorical areas:   

I. Technical – focusing on the technical aspects of the proposed solution to evaluate its viability 

within the context of the Vermont Healthcare Enterprise and the mandates set forth by Centers 

for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and Vermont’s Division of Innovation and 

Integration (DII) on how Information Technology (IT) solutions are to be built and 

implemented.   

II. Business – focusing on whether the solution will meet the business needs of the State answering 

such questions as:  Does it have the functionality necessary?  Will it meet our workflow needs 

in terms of efficiencies and productivities?  Does their staffing model appear realistic and 

reasonable? Etc.  

III. Leadership   - focusing on the company and staff from the perspective of historical success in 

this market and does the company and staff have the knowledge, leadership and vision to meet 

our needs.   

 

Each of the areas had a core team members assigned to it and on that team there was a designated 

point person for coordinating that team’s efforts with evaluating the proposals.  The Agency also 

called upon Subject Matter Experts (SME) to aid the scoring teams in the evaluation process. This 

detail level evaluation was broken into seven sub-category areas organized around CMS’s 

Medicaid Information Technology Architecture (MITA) as depicted in the Expertise Focus in the 

table below.   

 

Area Core Team Expertise Focus 
SME 

(Suggested) 

Technical Steve Bentley Hardware, Network   
Michael Hall Agency Enterprise Architecture 

Joe Liscinsky Components, Technical Architecture 

Mike Morey 

(DII) 

State Enterprise Architecture 

Brian Pardy Technical Architecture, SOA, Network 

Darin Prail Technical Architecture, Security, Privacy 

Business Michael 

McAdoo 

Care Management Daljit Clark, Eileen Girling 

Deb Austin Operations Management – 

COB/TPL/Claims 

Jeff Ross, Brenda Metivier, Robin 

Farnsworth 

Allan Merritt Operations Mgmt – 

Finance/Payment/Reporting & Program 

Management – Financial Reporting 

Sarah Walcott, Carrie Hathaway, 

Monica Light, Connie Harrison 

  Operations Management – Claims/Decision 

Support 

Heidi Hall (DMH) 

Mary Andes Operations and Program Management -- Nancy Hogue, Jennifer Egelhof 



Blueprint 

Beth Tanzman Program Integrity   

Ron Clark Program Integrity, Program Management Leanne Miles 

Shawn 

Skaflestad 

Program Management   

Stephanie Beck Provider Management & Member 

Management 

  

Bill Clark Member Management Kim LaFrance, Nancy Marinelli, 

Frank Reed 

(DMH) 

Provider Management & Program 

Management 

Cindy Walcott (DCF) 

Nathaniel Waite 

(VDH) 
    

Leadership Hunt Blair Healthcare Reform, HIT, HIE, HIBE Terry Bequette 

Lori Collins Operations Management, Overall Vision 

Jim Giffin Agency Finance 

Vicki Loner Clinical Care  / Chronic Care Initiative / 

Pharmacy 

Angela Rouelle Technical Vision, Eligibility, Enrollment 

Suzanne 

Santarcangelo 

Healthcare Policy 

 

The team evaluated the proposals in the following manner: 

 

Scoring 

Criteria 

Definition 
(Evaluation on the technical, business and informational aspects of the 

proposal/solution.) 

Value 

Exceeds 

Expectations 

The System described exceeded the expectation to rate a “10”. 

The system explained one that could perform in an efficient and 

exceptional fashion while streamlining complex tasks and 

simplifying procedures.   

10 

Points 

Meets 

Expectations 

System described would address/meet basic needs.   5 

Points 

Does Not 

Meet 

Expectations 

System described did not address/meet State’s expectations. 

1 Point 

Not 

Addressed 

Need was not addressed. 0 

Points 

 

2. What were the scores of all responders? 

The scoring is undergoing QA work to assure that it is as accurate as possible for the final report (see 

question 10 response) however preliminary results of the scoring of the proposals were: 

ACS  Xerox obtained the highest score – 3375 points out of a possible 5000 points 

HPES obtained the next high score - 3183 

Molina was lowest - 2937 

 

3. Who were the finalists? 

The finalists were ACS and HPES.  

 

4. What were the amounts of the bids?  Did they exceed the State’s budgeted amount? 

The amount of the bids varied due to the proposals containing differing years of implementation and 

maintenance.  The bids were:  

ACS  - $222,828,872.00 

HPES  - $207,835,404.00 



Molina - $259,500,000.00  

MedMetrics – Was not a qualified solution as they only offered pharmaceutical services. 

 

A cost analysis was done to normalize the amounts in terms of system components, and proposed 

staffing; this information will be in the final report as well however the ranking remained ACS, 

HPES, Molina (highest). 

 

 

5. Who were the members of the review team? 

The review team consisted of 29 staff from across the State, most of which are employed by the 

Agency of Human Services (AHS) as indicated in the table above.  The team consisted of Deputy 

Directors, Business Managers, Financial Managers, Project Managers, Information Technology 

Managers, System Architects, the AHS Chief Information Office (CIO) and legal counsel.  

 

Members of the team were:  Allan Merritt, Bill Clark, Debbie Austin, Frank Reed, Mary Andes, 

Michael McAdoo, Ron Clark, Shawn Skaflestad, Stephanie Beck, Nancy Hogue, Jill Gould, Beth 

Tanzman, Nathaniel Waite, Kimberly LaFrance, Leanne Miles, Brian Pardy, Darin Prail, Joseph 

Liscinsky, Michael Hall, Steve Bentley, Michael Morey, Seth Steinzor, Carrie Hathaway, Angela 

Rouelle, Hunt Blair, Lori Collins, Jim Giffin, Suzanne Santarcangelo and Vickie Loner. 

 

6. Did the review team score the respondents independently or was the scoring done as a team? 

 

The review teams scored their results independently. They discussed their observations and findings 

in group meetings. 

 

7. How was the following criteria scored for the finalists? 

 

a. Evaluation of Solutions Demonstrations 

15 Days prior to the demonstrations the vendors were each given the same scripted scenarios 

to perform. The evaluation team utilized standardized scoring sheets organized around 

these scenarios to score the demonstrations. The same team members evaluated each 

of the vendors. 

 

The demonstrations were scored using the following scale:  

 

Scoring 

Criteria 

Definition 
(Evaluation on the technical, business and informational aspects of the 

proposal/solution.) 

Value 

Exceeds 

Expectations 

The System must perform above your expectation to rate a “10”. 

The system performed in an efficient and exceptional fashion 

while streamlining complex tasks and simplifying procedures.   
10 

Points 

Meets 

Expectations 

System addressed/met basic needs.   5 

Points 

Does Not 

Meet 

Expectations 

System did not address/meet expectations. 

1 Point 

Not 

Addressed 

Need was not addressed. 0 

Points 

 



b. Review of reference checks 

Some reference checks were completed but the scores were not compiled as the RFP was 

being withdrawn. 

 

c. Performance of site visits 

Site visits were not performed as they were scheduled to occur at a later date. 

 

8. Did the review team make a recommendation and what was it? 

The Review team did not make any recommendations.  

 

9. Please provide a copy of the score sheet and recommendations. 

Attached is a copy of the scoring summary sheets. There were at least 10 groups of scoring sheets for 

each vendor. These were lengthy and complex dependent on the subject area. An example is being 

brought together and these are being summarized for the final report as well.  

 

There was not any verbal/written recommendation other than to ‘pull back’ the RFP.  

 

10. How much in total (state, federal, existing and new contractors, experts, etc) resources was expended 

to prepare, create, and manage this RFP process from origin to cancellation? 

 

The Agency as a whole has claimed $2,502,969 in gross expenditures on this effort from 1/1/09-

6/30/11.  Federal earned $2,252,670 State match is $250,299 as CMS provides federal funding at 

90% leaving the State a 10% share. Outstand expenses (AP) at this time are $314,324.50 for retainage 

and other costs from our Technical Assistance Consultant. This includes a report that should be 

delivered to Vermont Agency of Human Services by the end of August regarding “System and 

Procurement Evaluation and Recommendations” in which all of this subject matter will be fully 

detailed. This makes the total cost for the time period $2,817,293.50.   

 

The total expenditure includes “as-is” analysis of our current systems infrastructure and requirements 

gathering for our future infrastructure.  The resulting details that comprise the RFP are still valid for 

the follow on RFP once we have identified impacts of ACT 48 and the CMS guidance.   

 



The AHS Vendor Staffing Scoresheet may be viewed by clicking here. 

 

The full Medicaid Enterprise Solution Procurement Selection Report  of 
September 1, 2011, may be accessed by clicking here. 

http://auditor.vermont.gov/sites/auditor/files/6%20Vendor%20Staffing%20Score%20Sheet%20blank.pdf
http://auditor.vermont.gov/sites/auditor/files/8%20MES%20Selection%20Report%20Executive%20Summary%20090111.pdf


 

 

Contract #3:  

Vermont Driver & Registration Information  

& Verification Enterprise System 
  

 

On February 1, 2012, State Auditor Tom Salmon notified the commissioner of the 

Vermont Department of Motor Vehicles that he would be reviewing the 

expenditure of $18 million for the troubled Vermont Driver & Registration 

Information & Verification Enterprise System. This review was sparked by a 

“Seven Days” article suggesting problems with the system. 
 















On March 8, 2012, DMV Commissioner Robert Ide responded to the issues raised 

in Auditor Salmon’s letter of February 1, 2012. That response follows: 
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